
For the best experience, open this PDF portfolio in
 
Acrobat X or Adobe Reader X, or later.
 

Get Adobe Reader Now! 

http://www.adobe.com/go/reader




2020 Athletic Field Policy Memo  
Dan Glynn, Parks & Recreation Director  


 


This policy is needed as we transition away from having contracts with youth sport organizations to an 
hourly booking policy.  This policy formalizes the current policies and procedures we have with youth 
sport organizations, and puts into one place. These organizations are all volunteer ran which causes a lot 
of turnover. Many times there is miscommunication between incoming and outgoing board members. 
This document will be helpful for their incoming board members as they will know what their 
expectations are and how the City does things.   


Anything that is new in the document is listed below. 


 


Priority Groups 


Sanctioned status provides benefits such as priority scheduling and lower field fees. In return, these 
organizations must meet several criteria. These criteria will not be anything new for the youth sport 
organizations that have had contracts with the City in the past. For example, youth sport organizations 
currently pay a $5 per season per player fee for access to City fields. They also help with facility 
improvements like the batting cages at Racetrack Park. Having this status will protect field space for 
local youth sport organizations from organizations outside of the Stoughton area. 


 


Field Modifications.  


The new area in this is that permanent structures should be made available for community use. I’m not 
sure if this has been policy or if it has been communicated in the past, but it is my belief that it should 
be.   


 


 







 


1 


 


 
 


Athletic Field/Facility 
Allocation and User Guide 


  







 


2 


 


Table of Contents 
Introduction .................................................................................................................................................. 3 


Definition of Terms ................................................................................................................................... 3 


Athletic Field Use Policy ................................................................................................................................ 6 


Priority Group Qualification: Groups 1 – 8 ............................................................................................... 6 


Process for Obtaining Permits ...................................................................................................................... 7 


Application ................................................................................................................................................ 7 


Permit Procedures .................................................................................................................................... 7 


Pre-Season Scheduling Permit Requests .................................................................................................. 7 


Permit Changes, Reschedules, and New Requests ................................................................................... 8 


Fee Payment ............................................................................................................................................. 8 


Permit Cancellation ................................................................................................................................... 8 


Field Rest and Renovations ....................................................................................................................... 8 


Athletic Field Lining/Marking .................................................................................................................... 8 


Field Modifications .................................................................................................................................... 9 


Tournaments/Special Events .................................................................................................................... 9 


Liability Insurance Requirements .............................................................................................................. 9 


Errant Shots ............................................................................................................................................... 9 


Athletic Field/Facility Allocation Procedures .............................................................................................. 10 


Athletic Field Use Rules & Regulations ....................................................................................................... 11 


Athletic Fields/Facilities Inclement Weather Closure Policy ...................................................................... 13 


Purpose ................................................................................................................................................... 13 


Policy ....................................................................................................................................................... 13 


Procedure ................................................................................................................................................ 13 


Appendix A: Athletic Field/Facility Use Rules and Regulations Form ......................................................... 14 


Appendix B: Hold Harmless and Indemnity Agreement Form .................................................................... 16 


Appendix C: Application for Use of Athletic Fields/Facilities ...................................................................... 17 


Appendix D: Sanctioned Organization Application ..................................................................................... 18 


Appendix E: Athletic Field Fee Schedule ..................................................................................................... 20 


Appendix F: Alcohol Use ............................................................................................................................. 21 


Appendix G: Special Events in Parks Application ........................................................................................ 22 


 


  







 


3 


 


Introduction  
This manual contains general information and guidelines. It is not intended to be comprehensive, all-
inclusive, or to address all of the possible applications of or exceptions to the general policies and 
procedures described. Rather, this manual has been prepared as a general reference guide. The City of 
Stoughton Parks & Recreation Department reserves the right to unilaterally revise, supplement, or 
discontinue any of the policies, guidelines, or procedures described in this manual. Nothing in this 
manual is intended, either expressly or impliedly to provide any right or benefit of any kind whatsoever 
to any person or entity, or to acknowledge, establish or impose any legal duty to a third party. 


The City of Stoughton Parks & Recreation Department issues permits for the use of athletic fields to 
organizations and the general public for recreational activities and programs. The purpose of this guide 
is to outline the procedures, regulations, and allocation priority for the permitted use of athletic fields.  
Due to the increase demand for the use of City fields it is imperative that all user groups abide by the 
policies and procedures set forth in this guide.  


Athletic Fields are allocated and permitted in two time periods, April 1 through August 15 and August 16 
through October 31. The Parks & Recreation Department will monitor proper use of field allocations and 
permits. Priority will be given to City of Stoughton Parks & Recreation Department activities and 
programs, Stoughton Area School District, sanctioned organizations, Stoughton youth and adult non-
profit organizations, and City residents. The City will charge fees to recover costs to operate, maintain, 
and administer the use of facilities.  


The Director of Parks & Recreation will make interpretation of language in the Athletic Field/Facility 
Allocation and Usage Guide. An appeal of the Director of Parks & Recreation’s decision may be made to 
the Mayor and must be submitted in writing with justification within ten (10) business days from the 
decision. The Mayor’s decision is final.  


Definition of Terms  
Resident Status - Resident status is defined as groups or organizations with at least 90% or more 
Stoughton Area School District residents. Team rosters and/or individual participant utility bills/photo ID 
may be required by Parks & Recreation Department staff to verify residency status.  


School District Resident (SDR) – A School District Resident (SDR) is a person who lives within the 
boundaries of the Stoughton Area School District, but may not contribute to City of Stoughton taxes. 
This would include those who live in a neighboring township such as Pleasant Springs.  


Youth Status – Youth Status is defined as persons under the age of 18 years old.  


Non-Profit Status – To qualify for non-profit status, the organization must meet all the criteria below: 


1. The organization must be registered as a not-for-profit corporation with the State of Wisconsin, 
or if not registered with the State, must have a constitution, bylaws, or mission statement which 
clearly states the objectives of the organization are of a non-profit, non-commercial nature.  


2. The organization’s board of directors must be comprised of volunteers, with at least 90% or 
more Stoughton Area School District residents. The organization must submit the following: 


a. If incorporated, submit State Incorporation papers and bylaws; if not incorporated, 
submit constitution and bylaws or mission statement.  


Commented [DG1]: This should work for the sport group 
seasons 


Commented [DG2]: Will need to be decided by Parks & 
Rec Comm.  


Commented [DG3]: Parks & Rec Comm. Or Mayor?  







 


4 


 


b. A summary of their annual budget showing all anticipated revenue, expenditures, and 
schedule of fees.  


c. A roster of board member with addresses.  
d. Contact information for the Field Representative authorized to make reservations for 


the organization 


Sanctioned Status – To qualify as a sanctioned organization with the City of Stoughton Parks & 
Recreation Department the organization must meet the following qualifications and have a signed 
Sectioned Organization Agreement with the City.  


Sanctioned Qualifications 


1. The organization shall have its own volunteer board with a set of bylaws adopted to guide the 
board in policy-making decisions. 


2. Provide a summary of their annual budget showing all anticipated revenue, expenditures, and 
schedule of fees.  


3. The organization and its bylaws must be compatible with the City of Stoughton Parks & 
Recreation Department’s philosophy.  


4. The organization shall require signed and dated waivers be completed by all participants (in the 
case of minors, by their parent or legal guardian) carrying language as specified by the City. “In 
consideration of the permission extended to the undersigned to participate in ___________, 
and for other good and valuable consideration, the undersigned voluntarily, knowingly, and 
expressly assumes the risk and liability and fully and forever release, discharge, indemnify, 
defend and hold harmless the City of Stoughton, its Board, officers, employees, volunteers, 
successors and assigns, from and against any and all claims, causes of action, bodily or personal 
injury claims, causes of action, bodily or personal injury claims, property damages, liability, 
costs, expenses including but not limited to attorneys’ fees, the undersigned now has or which 
may hereafter accrue, on account of, arising out of or in any manner relating to the 
undersigned’s participation in_____________. “ 


5. The organization must appoint a Field Representative to serve as the liaison between the group 
and the Parks & Recreation Department for purposes of scheduling, planning, and dealing with 
problems and issues that may arise. The group’s Field Representative is expected to attend the 
Parks & Recreation Department’s annual athletic organization meeting. All correspondence 
between the organization and the City shall be communicated through the Parks & Recreation 
Department.  


6. The organization must understand and agree that it is solely responsible for determining 
whether any staff, employee, or volunteer is qualified and suitable for any group position and/or 
activity and that the Parks & Recreation Department is not responsible for any hiring or 
retention decision.  


7. The organization shall provide a roster listing addresses of all participants prior to the start of 
each season.  


8. The organization shall provide certificates of insurance listing the City of Stoughton as 
additionally insured. The organization is responsible for securing and maintaining the following 
minimum insurance coverage: 
 
Comprehensive general liability and property damage insurance in the following amounts: 


Commented [DG4]: Will need to create  


Commented [DG5]: AJ – Do we want to keep this and/or 
change the language? 







 


5 


 


Bodily Injury:  $500,000 per occurrence 
   $500,000 aggregate 
Property Damage: $500,000 per occurrence  
   $500,000 aggregate 
Umbrella:  $1,000,000 
 


9. At least 90% of the participants must reside within the Stoughton Area School District 
boundaries.  


10. Organization must recognize the Parks & Recreation Department as a partner in all publicity. In 
return, the Parks & Recreation Department will recognize the organization as sanctioned and 
provide web links and/or contact information.  


11. Organizations must provide a copy of their game schedules to the Parks & Recreation 
Department 10 business days prior to the start of the season.  


12. Organizations must pay all invoices for field use, lights, and or other services in a timely manner.  
13. Organizations must adhere to all Athletic Field/Facility Rules & Regulations included within the 


Athletic Field/Facility Allocation and Usage Guide, and all pertinent City ordinances. 
14. Each organization’s sanctioned status will be reviewed on an annual basis by the Parks & 


Recreation Department.  
15. The number of affiliate organizations may be limited based upon available Parks & Recreation 


Department resources.  
16. The Director of Parks & Recreation shall be notified in writing regarding any complaint and/or 


litigation involving any league/organization or its personnel. 
17. No organization shall conduct or sponsor any formal instructional training/clinic where a fee or 


registration is required on any City owned property.  
18. Organization shall assist Parks Maintenance in athletic field preparation pertinent to their 


individual sport to be determined by the Parks Maintenance Supervisor.  
19. Organization shall assist the City in facility development to be determined by the Parks & 


Recreation Director.  
20. Provide access to Stoughton residents regardless of the ability to pay 


  


Commented [DG6]: AJ - I took this off previous contracts 
with local sport groups. Please update if it needs to be 
changed.  


Commented [DG7]: Pat – I included this line so it is 
outlined in the policy. You can be more specific if you want.  







 


6 


 


Athletic Field Use Policy  
Due to the limited number of fields available, the City of Stoughton has established the following 
Athletic Field Use Policy for the allocation and use of athletic fields.  


The Stoughton Parks & Recreation Department recognizes the necessity to afford Stoughton residents 
the opportunity to rent athletic fields owned by the City of Stoughton. Priority will be given to Stoughton 
Parks & Recreation Department activities and programs, Stoughton Area School District activities and 
programs, sanctioned organizations, Stoughton youth and adult non-profit organizations, and City of 
Stoughton residents. The Parks & Recreation Department will charge fees to recover costs to operate, 
maintain, and administer the use of athletic fields.  


The City of Stoughton Parks & Recreation Department has established the following priority use.  


Priority Group Qualification: Groups 1 – 8  
Priority use of athletic fields/facilities will be allocated as follows: 


Group 1: Stoughton Parks & Recreation Department sponsored or co-sponsored activities and programs.  


Group 2: Stoughton Area School District programs and activities  


Group 3: Sanctioned organizations  


Group 4: Non-profit youth organizations with at least 90% Stoughton Area School District residency 
status  


Group 5: Non-profit adult organizations with at least 90% Stoughton Area School District residency 
status 


Group 6: Non-profit youth organizations with less than 90% Stoughton Area School District residency 
status  


Group 7: Non-profit adult organizations with less than 90% Stoughton Area School District residency 
status 


Group 8: All other organizations  


 


The Parks & Recreation Director shall develop and publish procedures which define the terms and 
implement the allocation of athletic fields in accordance with this policy.  


  


Commented [DG8]: TBD by Parks & Rec Comm. The new 
software has the ability to open up field reservation ability 
early for sanctioned groups. 







 


7 


 


Process for Obtaining Permits 
Disclaimer 


The City of Stoughton makes no representations whatsoever that any of its fields are appropriate and/or 
compatible with any contemplated activity. Applicants and permit holders are solely responsible for 
determining if any field is safe and appropriate for any intended use. Permit holders are expected to 
inspect any field/facility prior and subsequent to each use to identify any unsafe condition and shall 
promptly advise the City of Stoughton Parks & Recreation Department in writing of any perceived unsafe 
or dangerous condition.  


Application  
Fields are permitted and allocated in two time periods. This semi-annual allocation is not intended to 
interrupt field assignments for teams and/or organizations during the course of a season that has 
already started. Each organization is required to sign and submit an Athletic Field/Facility Use Rules and 
Regulations form (see page 16), Hold Harmless and Indemnity Agreement form (see page 17), 
Application for Use of City of Stoughton Parks & Recreation Fields/Facilities form (see page 18), and 
provide a certificate of insurance naming the “City of Stoughton” as an “Additional Insured” prior to the 
issuance of a permit. (see insurance requirements on page 9) Roster information may be required for 
verification of residency status. 


Multiple-use reservations may be made for more than one date or with recurring weekly use. Any 
person or organization missing the scheduling deadlines will have access to any remaining fields on a 
first-come, first-served basis after the allocation process is finalized. Submission of a request does not 
constitute approval. Approval is given according to the allocation policy, after a deposit is paid and when 
a permit is issued. Every effort will be made to accommodate the user group’s use of fields. 


Permit Procedures 
Requests to permit the use of City of Stoughton fields and facilities are made through the Parks & 
Recreation Department at 207 S. Forrest St, Stoughton, WI 53589, 608-873-6746, or online at 
www.stoughtonrec.com. Organizations wishing to utilize a field for a game must complete the 
appropriate application forms. Each organization must assign a Field Representative who will be the 
main contact with the Parks & Recreation Department for field scheduling.  


Pre-Season Scheduling Permit Requests  
An Application for Use of City of Stoughton Parks & Recreation Department Fields/Facilities is required 
and must be submitted according to the dates listed in Table 1.  


Table 1 


Applications Due  Events/Dates 
November 1 All tournaments for the following calendar year 
March 1  All April 1 through August 15 field rentals 
July 1  All August 16 through October 31 field rentals 


 


*Tournament request must be submitted using the “Special Events in Parks Application” form. (see page 
19) 







 


8 


 


Block permits may be issued to organizations for league scheduling purposes. Game schedules shall be 
provided to the Parks & Recreation Department prior to the start of each season. The Parks & 
Recreation Department reserves the right to modify any requests.  


Permit Changes, Reschedules, and New Requests  
Any permit changes, reschedules or new requests for use of City of Stoughton facilities must be 
submitted in writing by the group’s Field Representative a minimum of 5 business days prior to the 
requested use date. Scheduling requests received less than 5 business days prior to the requested use 
date will be processed as resources allow. Scheduling of fields will be based on availability. 


Fee Payment  
Payment for field use will be invoiced to sanctioned organizations at the conclusion of each season. 
Invoices must be paid within 30 days of issuance. All other organizations or groups shall pay at the 
issuance of the permit.  


Permit Cancellation  
Permits may be canceled and/or rescheduled. Permits canceled by the Stoughton Parks & Recreation 
Department or due to inclement weather may be rescheduled as availability allows. Any organization 
that has been allocated space and does not intend to use the space according to the permit shall notify 
the Parks & Recreation Department so that the fields may be reallocated or otherwise used to their 
maximum. Permits canceled by the user at least 5 business days prior to the event will not be charged to 
the user. Permits canceled with fewer than 5 business days notice may be charged to the user, except if 
the cancellation is due to inclement weather or unplayable field conditions. 


Fields may be closed at the discretion of the Director of Parks Recreation and/or Parks Maintenance 
Supervisor or their designated representatives. Closures are kept to a minimum when fields remain in 
playable condition. Priority is given to maintenance needs and rest and renovation periods for all fields. 
The Parks & Recreation Department may cancel use of City maintained fields for reasons including, but 
not limited to: 


· Field/facility renovations 
· When the health and safety of participants are threatened due to impending conditions, 


including but not limited to, heacy rains, pesticide applications, etc.  
· When “poor or unsafe” field conditions exist (see definition on page 13) 
· Non-adherence to Athletic Field/Facility Allocation and Use Guidelines, or City 


ordinances 
· At all other times when deemed to be in the best interest of the City of Stoughton 


Field Rest and Renovations  
The Parks & Recreation Department reserves the right to cancel permits due to poor field/turf 
conditions. The health and safety of users and the condition of the fields takes priority over scheduling.  


Athletic Field Lining/Marking  
Lining of fields on City property is prohibited unless permission is granted by the Parks & Recreation 
Department. Only the City of Stoughton may apply chemicals/fertilizers to City property. Athletic fields 
are included in the City’s Turf Management Policy. Any user failing to comply with established guidelines 







 


9 


 


and notification requests are subject to pay for all damages occurring to the facility and the termination 
of field use permit(s).  


Field Modifications 
Requests to modify or improve any City of Stoughton facility shall be submitted in writing to the 
Stoughton Parks & Recreation Department for consideration. No permanent structures or equipment 
shall be erected on any City facility unless approved by the City of Stoughton Parks & Recreation 
Committee and Stoughton City Council, and is dedicated for community use. All permanent field/facility 
improvements shall become the property of the City of Stoughton. 


Requests to modify field size for multiple-use shall be submitted in writing to the Stoughton Parks & 
Recreation Department for consideration. Users may not modify a field for use without approval noted 
on the permit.  


Tournaments/Special Events 
All organizations wishing to host a tournament using City of Stoughton maintained fields/facilities must 
complete and submit a Special Events in Parks Application form. (see page 22). Tournament request 
requirements include: 


· Tournament Applications must be submitted by November 1st for all tournaments to be 
conducted during the following calendar year. Applications received after the deadline will be 
processed based on availability. 


· Tournament requests must be submitted separately from regular game requests. 
· The special event fee is a separate fee than the athletic field/facility fee.  


Liability Insurance Requirements 
Athletic Field Users shall secure and maintain throughout the period of use comprehensive general 
liability insurance and property damage insurance with policy limits of not less than: 


Comprehensive general liability and property damage insurance in the following amounts: 
Bodily Injury:  $500,000 per occurrence 
   $500,000 aggregate 
Property Damage: $500,000 per occurrence  
   $500,000 aggregate 
Umbrella:  $1,000,000 


The City of Stoughton shall be named as additional insured by endorsement. The types and limits of 
insurance may be changed from time to time as determined by the City of Stoughton. The Athletic Field 
User agrees to hold the City of Stoughton harmless and free from any liability of any nature arising out 
of the use of City of Stoughton Recreational Facilities, to include reimbursement of any legal costs and 
fees incurred in defense of such claims. 


Errant Shots 
Athletic field users will reimburse any third party for uninsured and/or out-of-pocket expense arising out 
of third party property damage caused by errant balls; provided that the third party is an intended and 
permitted user of any City of Stoughton property. This provision is intended solely for the contracting 
parties and is not intended to acknowledge, recognize or impose any duty to any third party. 


Commented [DG9]: AJ – This may be new for groups. I’m 
not a fan of the groups placing storage sheds, concession 
buildings, etc on City property and having no authority over 
them. We ran into dilapidated storage sheds that should 
have been removed, but they are not City property. We 
should have authority over this.  


Commented [DG10]: AJ – Please review  







 


10 


 


Athletic Field/Facility Allocation Procedures 
Allocation of athletic fields and facilities will follow the Athletic Field/Facility Allocation and Usage 
Guidelines. The following procedures will be followed: 


· Field/facilities will be allocated by priority use.  
· Fields/facilities will be allocated to organizations based on the percentage and number of 


verifiable total Stoughton Area School District residents participating in that organization. 
· Verification of Stoughton Area School District residency will be established by providing such 


documentation as Parks & Recreation Department staff deems necessary, up to and including 
team rosters and player addresses.  


· Fields will be allocated without regard to competitive level or skill.  
· Organization representatives must provide game schedules to Parks & Recreation Department 


10 days prior to the start of their season.  
· Tournaments and other special events may be hosted at City facilities throughout the year. The 


Parks & Recreation Department reserves the right to re-assign field assignments to 
accommodate the needs for these tournaments and/or special events.  


· After all requirements for application of field use are met, a formal permit will be issues 
authorizing use of City of Stoughton maintained fields. 


Any requests for additional use or programs not covered by the Athletic Field/Facility Allocation and 
Usage Guidelines should be addressed in writing to the Parks & Recreation Department.   


  







 


11 


 


Athletic Field Use Rules & Regulations  
In addition to the Application for Use of City of Stoughton Fields/Facilities form, a completed copy of the 
Athletic Field Use Rules and Regulations form is required each season. (see page 14) Applicants are 
required to abide by the specific rules of the application as well as other City ordinances. Failure to 
comply may result in a cancellation of any current or future permits. The Athletic Field Use Rules and 
Regulations include, but are not limited to: 


· Groups wishing to utilize a field for a game or practice must acquire a permit from the 
Stoughton Parks & Recreation Department. 
 


· It is the responsibility of the organization’s Field Representative and/or the individual identified 
as the person in charge of the permit to enforce the rules and regulations regarding the conduct 
of the group while using City facilities. 
 


· Field use begins and ends at the times stated on the permit, including set-up and clean-up. 
Groups are not allowed on fields prior to the start time on the permit and are required to exit 
the fields and have adjacent areas cleaned up at the ending time indicated on the permit. Check 
your permit for specific times you may access the fields. All litter must be picked up and placed 
in trash cans after each use. 
 


· City fields may be permitted as available beginning at 8 a.m. Use will end at dusk on unlighted 
fields and at the pre-determined permit time on lighted fields. Variances to these times must be 
approved by the Parks & Recreation Department and noted on your field use permit. 
 


· Permits are not transferable. All users will ensure that no unauthorized third party is granted 
permission to use the field without Parks & Recreation Department approval. 
 


· Practices are not allowed on softball and baseball fields that have been prepped for games (i.e. 
dragged and chalked). 
 


· Parking is allowed in designated areas only. Vehicles are not allowed on City fields or property, 
other than parking lots, without written permission noted on the permit issued by the Parks & 
Recreation Department. User groups must inform their participants and spectators to park in 
facility parking lots and public parking areas. 
 


· Alcohol use and sales need to be permitted and are only allowed in certain areas of Mandt Park, 
Racetrack Park, and Norse Park. Alcohol may not be sold or consumed 15 minutes before or 
after youth games.  Please see Appendix E: Alcohol for designated locations and more 
information.  
 


· Selling food or other items is not allowed without Parks & Recreation Department approval. 
 


· The display or distribution of handbills, pamphlets, flyers, signs or any other printed material 
containing advertising matter, information or announcements is prohibited on City property. 


Commented [DG11]: Based on City ordinance and 
current policy 







 


12 


 


 
· Amplified sound is not allowed on any field without Parks & Recreation Department approval 


and must be noted on the permit. 
 


· Balls and any other equipment thrown, batted, kicked, or otherwise that land on private 
property must not be retrieved without the property owner’s permission. 
 


· Property boundary walls, buildings, signs and fences are not to be used as backstops at any 
time. 
 


· No hitting or kicking balls into backstops or fences (“pepper”). 
 


· Portable goals and/or markers are allowed, but must be removed daily. 
 


· Permit holders shall inspect the field/facility prior to and subsequent to each use to identify any 
dangerous or unsafe condition and to determine whether the field/facility is safe and 
appropriate for any contemplated activity. Permit holders shall promptly advise the Parks & 
Recreation Department of any perceived dangerous or unsafe condition. 
 


  







 


13 


 


Athletic Fields/Facilities Inclement Weather Closure Policy 
Purpose 
City of Stoughton athletic fields have been designed and are maintained for the enjoyment and use of 
Stoughton residents. The purpose of this policy is to guide the use of City athletic fields, to prevent 
damage to the playing surface and injuries to field users brought upon by inclement weather or unsafe 
playing conditions. An effective field maintenance program is essential for safe, quality fields and sports 
complexes. User groups are asked to help by accepting and adhering to these rules. Groups who use City 
athletic facilities are expected to assist in protecting their participants and fields during periods of rain 
or inclement weather. It only takes one practice or game to destroy a field that is not ready for play. 


Policy 
The Stoughton Parks & Recreation Department reserves the right to cancel or suspend approved 
outdoor facility or field use permits for games and other uses whenever it is anticipated that weather or 
field conditions could result in damage to the fields or injury to players. Permits may also be cancelled 
when the health and safety of participants are threatened due to impending conditions. 


Procedure 
The Director of Parks & Recreation and/or Parks Maintenance Supervisor or their designated 
representatives shall have the authority to close any or all athletic fields whenever weather or field 
conditions dictate.  


It is the user group’s responsibility to call the Parks & Recreation Department Cancellation Hotline at 
(608) 873-6724 or check the Parks & Recreation Department website at www.stoughtonrec.com after 
4:00 p.m. Monday through Friday. Groups using the fields on Saturday and/or Sunday must use their 
own discretion if a field is playable.  If a field becomes damaged, an organization may be responsible for 
any necessary repairs and/or have their future permits canceled. Groups cannot play on fields that have 
been closed. 


Groups who use City athletic facilities are responsible for canceling games and/or practices on-site if 
“poor or unsafe field conditions” exist. The Parks & Recreation Department’s definition of “poor or 
unsafe field conditions” includes: 


1. Presence of lightning or thunder 
2. Standing water in an area on the field 
3. Water surfacing or bubbling up when walking on turf 
4. Infield areas of baseball/softball diamonds that are saturated where a person walking sinks in 
5. Field is muddy to the point that footing becomes unstable (players slipping and sliding) 
6. Sharp or other dangerous objects on field (i.e. broken glass, large unmovable rocks, broken base 


pegs, holes, etc.) 
7. Unsecured goals 


Field users shall inspect all fields prior to and subsequent to each use to determine the suitability of the 
fields for any contemplated use and to identify any safety hazards. Field users shall take reasonable 
measures to protect participants and spectators from known safety hazards. Field users shall promptly 
advise the Parks & Recreation Department of any known safety hazards. 


Commented [DG12]: Current procedure 







 


14 


 


Appendix A: Athletic Field/Facility Use Rules and Regulations Form  
Athletic groups must submit a signed copy of this form each season with their Application for Use of 
Athletic Fields/Facilities. 


1. Groups wishing to utilize a field for an organized game or practice must acquire a permit from 
the Stoughton Parks & Recreation Department.  


2. It is the responsibility of the Field Representative and/or the individual identified as the person 
in charge of the permit to enforce the rules and regulations regarding the conduct of the group 
while using City facilities.  These rules include, but are not limited to: 


a. Field use begins and ends at the times stated on the permit, including inspections, set-
up and clean-up. Groups are not allowed on fields prior to the start time on the permit 
and are required to exit the fields and have adjacent areas cleaned up at the ending 
time indicated on the permit. 


b. Field use will begin no earlier than 8:00 a.m. Use will end at dusk on non-lighted fields 
and by the time designated on the permit for all lighted fields. Variances to these times 
must be approved by the Parks & Recreation Department and noted on your field use 
permit. Permits are not transferable. All users will ensure that no unauthorized third 
party is granted permission to use the field/facility without Parks & Recreation 
Department approval. 


c. Practices are not allowed on softball and baseball fields that have been prepped for 
games (i.e. dragged and chalked). 


d. Parking is allowed in designated areas only.  
e. Alcohol use and sales need to be permitted and are only allowed in certain areas of 


Mandt Park, Racetrack Park, and Norse Park. Alcohol may not be sold or consumed 15 
minutes before or after youth games.   


f. Selling of food or other items is not allowed without Parks & Recreation Department 
approval. The display or distribution of handbills, pamphlets, flyers or any other printed 
material containing advertising matter, information or announcements is prohibited on 
City property. 


g. Amplified sound is not allowed on any field without Parks & Recreation Department 
approval and will be noted on your permit. 


h. Balls and any other equipment thrown, batted, kicked, or otherwise that land on private 
property must not be retrieved without 


i. the property owner’s permission. 
j. Property boundary walls and fences are not to be used as backstops at any time. 
k. Portable goals and/or markers are allowed but must be removed daily. 
l. All litter must be picked up and placed in trash cans after each use. 
m. Groups shall inspect the field/facility prior to and subsequent to each use to determine 


whether condition are safe and/or appropriate for any intended use. Groups shall 
promptly advise the Parks & Recreation Department of any unsafe/dangerous condition. 


3. Inclement Weather Closure Policy: Groups may not play on fields closed due to poor field 
conditions. It is the user group’s responsibility to call the Parks & Recreation Department 
Cancellation Hotline at (608) 873-6724 or check the Parks & Recreation Department website at 
www.stoughtonrec.com after 4:00 p.m. Monday through Friday. Groups using the fields on 


Commented [DG13]: Based on City ordinance and 
current policy 







 


15 


 


Saturday and/or Sunday must use their own discretion if a field is playable.  If a field becomes 
damaged, an organization may be responsible for any necessary repairs and/or have their future 
permits canceled. Groups cannot play on fields that have been closed. 


4. Non-adherence to any part of the Athletic Field/Facility Use and Allocation Guidelines or City 
ordinances may result in the cancellation of permits and/or prohibition of future use. 


5. No permit will be issued without a copy of the organization’s Certificate of Insurance. The 
organization shall provide certificates of insurance listing the City of Stoughton as additionally 
insured. The organization is responsible for securing and maintaining the following minimum 
insurance coverage: 
 
Comprehensive general liability and property damage insurance in the following amounts: 
Bodily Injury:  $500,000 per occurrence 
   $500,000 aggregate 
Property Damage: $500,000 per occurrence  
   $500,000 aggregate 
Umbrella:  $1,000,000 
 
 
 
 


Applicant Name: 


   (Printed Representative Name)   (Group/Organization) 


 


 


 


 


   (Signature)     (Date) 


 


 


 


  


Commented [DG14]: AJ – You will need to review this.  







 


16 


 


Appendix B: Hold Harmless and Indemnity Agreement Form 
 


The City of Stoughton does not assume responsibility of liability for claims, 
damages, or injuries, of whatever nature, which may arise from use of the 
fields. 


 


I, _______________________________ the authorized representative of 


__________________________________, do hereby acknowledge that I have 


read the terms and conditions of the Athletic Field/Facility Allocation and Usage 


Guide; that the terms and conditions are acceptable and User Group agrees to 


abide by, comply with, and accept full and complete responsibility therefore. 


 


Dated this ______ day of ______________________, 20______. 


 


 


By: ______________________________________, Authorized Representative 


  


Commented [DG15]: AJ – This may need to be changed 







 


17 


 


Appendix C: Application for Use of Athletic Fields/Facilities  


 







 


18 


 


Appendix D: Sanctioned Organization Application  
Insert form 


  







 


19 


 


Page left intentionally blank for sanctioned group application form.  







 


20 


 


Appendix E: Athletic Field Fee Schedule  
Insert Table   







 


21 


 


Appendix F: Alcohol Use  
The following locations have been approved by the Stoughton City Council.  


 


Approved alcohol use and sales in Mandt Park are allowed in the following areas and times: 


1. Within 30 feet of the large shelter during reservations 


2. Within the defined area at the band shell 


3. Within 30 feet of, as well as within the grandstand, and the area between the grandstand and 


the Mandt Community Center. 


4. No later than 10 PM. 


5. Unless additional approvals are granted by the City Council. 


 


Approved alcohol use and sales in Racetrack Park are allowed in following areas and times: 


1. Within 50 feet of fencing currently used for eligible game. 


2. Within 20 feet of Racetrack Building. 


3. After 15 minutes of completion of Little League.   


4. Within 15 minutes of, or 15 minutes after game start and finish times. 


5. No later than 10 PM 


6. Unless additional approvals are granted by the City Council. 


 


Approved alcohol use and sales in Norse Park are allowed in the following area and times:  


1. Within 50 feet of the baseball diamond fencing. 


2. Only during Merchant Home Talent baseball games on Thursdays and Sundays from April 


through October. 


3. Unless additional approvals are granted by the City Council.  







 


22 


 


Appendix G: Special Events in Parks Application  
Insert form 


  







 


23 


 


Page left intentionally blank for special event application 


  







 


24 


 


Page left intentionally blank for special event application 


 







 


25 


 


Page left intentionally blank for special event application 


 







 


26 


 


Page left intentionally blank for special event application 


 







 


27 


 


Page left intentionally blank for special event application 


 


  







 


28 


 


Page left intentionally blank for special event application 







 


29 


 


Page left intentionally blank for special event application 


 







 


30 


 


Page left intentionally blank for special event application 


 


  







 


31 


 


Page left intentionally blank for special event application 







 


32 


 


Page left intentionally blank for special event application 


 


  







 


33 


 


Page left intentionally blank for special event application 







 


34 


 


Page left intentionally blank for special event application 


 







 


35 


 


Page left intentionally blank for special event application 


 


 







  
 Page 1 


SPECIAL EVENTS IN PARKS  
City of Stoughton Parks and Recreation 
 


Event Information 
 
Name of Event________________________________ Park ____________________________ 
 
Charitable Event? �No �Yes, Proceeds donated to__________________________________ 
Event Category �Run/Walk �Athletic Tournament �Concert �Festival �Other ___________________ 
Date of Event ____________________ 
Rain Date _______________________ 
Expected Attendance ________________ 
Alcohol Sales �No �Yes 
Food/Beverage Sales �No �Yes    
Amplification �No �Yes 
Dumpster Needed? �No �Yes 
Electric/Water Usage �No �Yes 
Shelter Needed? �No �Yes 
Digging Needed? (fence stakes, tents etc.) �No �Yes 
 
Portable Restrooms Required ___________  
Number of ADA Portable Restrooms Required (Min of 1 or 10%, whatever is greater) _____________ 
 
Mandt Park Only 


Mandt Center Needed? �No �Yes 
Mandt Center Restrooms Needed? �No �Yes 
Grandstand Needed? �No �Yes 


 
Racetrack Park Only 
 Concession Stand Needed?  �No �Yes     
 Admission or parking fees are not allowed at Racetrack Park 
 
Time of Event 
Set-up ___________ Event Starts ___________ Event Ends _________ Take-down _________ 
Does this require time in the park the day before your event? �No �Yes 
 


Event Organizer Information 
 
Name of Group ___________________________Group Contact Name___________________________ 
 
Address __________________________ City/State/Zip _______________________________________ 
 
Phone #1 _________________ Phone #2 ________________  
 
E-mail _____________________________________ 
 
Is Host Organization a 501(c)-3? �No �Yes, #ES - ________________________________ 


Version 
3-7-167-
12-2019 


Commented [DG1]: New. The larger tournaments at 
Racetrack were causing the plumbing to backup 
because the shelter was not designed for the really 
large tournaments.  







  
 Page 2 


 
 
Special Event Fees 
 
      Sanctioned  Non Profit  For Profit  
      Organization   
Event Fee      $150   $250   $400  
Cleanup Dep. - (Refundable   $500   $750   $1000 
Labor Charge/per hour     $50 per hour   same   same 
Damage or loss of property    Fees to be calculated same   same 
    
*Sanctioned organizations must meet the qualifications in the Stoughton Athletic Field Policy and have a 
signed agreement form on file for the current year.   
 
Permit Fees        
Temporary Class “B” Picnic Beer/Wine License $10    $10  $10  
Beer Selling Charge    No Charge  $200  $400  


  
Facility Fees       
Grandstand or Grounds (Jr. Fair Exempt) No Charge  $400+10%gate $550+10%gate 
Ball Field Lights     $25/hour  same  same 
Scoreboard Controller    $25/day  same  same 
Portable Scoreboard    $25/day  same  same 
Electric Charges    Use + $50 Meter Fee same  same 
Water Charges     Use + $50 Meter Fee same  same  
 
Supply Fees 
Diamond Dry     City cost. Please contact for current price.  
Diamond Chalk     City cost. Please contact for current price. 
Toilet Paper     City cost. Please contact for current price. 
Trash Bags     City cost. Please contact for current price. 
 
 
Event Fee (per day):        $_______   
 
Dumpster Fee (Event organizer fills dumpster)    $_______  
 
Beer Selling Charge       $_______   
 
Grandstand or Grounds (Jr. Fair Exempt)    $_______  
 
Ball Field Lights (Per diamond per hour)      $_______  
  
 
Scoreboard Controllers (Racetrack Park diamonds #1 and #2 only) $_______ 
 
Portable Scoreboard       $_______ 
 
Electric Charges       $_______    
 
Water Charges        $_______  
 
Supply Charges        $_______ 
 


Commented [DG2]: Changed from Stoughton Non 
Profit to Sanctioned Organization to conform to the 
Athletic Field Policy.  


Formatted: Font: Not Bold


Formatted: Font: Bold


Formatted: Font: Not Bold


Formatted: Font: Bold


Commented [DG3]: This is new. The controllers are 
roughly $750 to replace.  


Formatted: Font: Bold


Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Bold


Commented [DG4]: This is new. Groups have been 
using a lot of supplies during their events.  


Formatted: Underline


Formatted: No underline







  
 Page 3 


Total         $_______   


      
Cancellation of any event, for any reason, shall result in charges for actual services, labor and 
materials provided as well as 20% of the event fee. 


GENERAL INFORMATION  
 
 
All Special Events held in Stoughton Parks require the approval of the Stoughton Parks and 
Recreation Department.  Special Events are defined as events that include selling alcohol, vending, 
a run/walk component, fireworks, and/or the attendance is expected to exceed 200 people.  Please 
include a one page description of the event with this application.  The packet and description will be 
reviewed by the Stoughton Parks and Recreation Director and any applicable City committees.  We 
recommend submitting your application a minimum of 45-60 days in advance to assure time for 
review and approval of your event. Also, keep in mind that you must have approval to use the park 
before you can begin marketing your event.  
 


Park Hours  
All Stoughton Parks close at 10 p.m. The park hours are established and regulated in accordance 
with the City of Stoughton Code of Ordinances. What this means for your special event is that all of 
the clean up of the event must be completed by 10 p.m.  
 
Requests for extended hours will require administrative review and must be submitted no later than 
30 days prior to the reservation date. 
 
Parking, Security, Medical Needs, and Accessibility   
As an Event Organizer, you are required to provide a safe and secure environment for your event. 
This is accomplished through sound planning. We require all special events to have a plan, which 
covers parking, security, medical needs and handicapped accessibility.  The plan description should 
include, but is not limited to the hiring of private security companies and licensed professional 
emergency medical services, crowd control, venue safety, communication plan in case of an 
emergency, site and route descriptions, etc. The plan may be subject to review by City of Stoughton 
Police and Fire Departments who may make additional recommendations.   
 
As the event organizer, you are responsible for informing all participants, volunteers, attendees, and 
vendors of the parking and other regulations.  Parking at events will not impede access to facilities 
for emergencies.  
 
Remember to structure activities to ensure that they are barrier-free and offer equal opportunities 
for accessibility by persons who are disabled.  When using the grandstand or other facilities, 
remember to keep aisles and exits open and observe capacity limits. 
 


Event Set-up and Takedown  
As the Event Organizer it is your responsibility to make proper arrangements for set-up and clean 
up of your event. This includes making proper reservations of the park and park shelter, and 
sufficient event staff and volunteers to set up, clean up and safeguard the park and the park 
property during your event.  
 


Formatted: Font: Bold


Formatted: Font: Bold


Formatted: Not Highlight







  
 Page 4 


For events at Racetrack Park, the Event Organizer is required to meet with City Staff for a pre-event 
and post-event inspection of the park and its facilities prior to setting up and after take-down. The 
Event Organizer is responsible for trash removal. Dumpsters are available on request. Some events 
will be required to pay a damage deposit.  It is also your responsibility as the Event Organizer to 
reserve the appropriate park shelter. Submission of this Special Events packet or holding the event 
during the previous year does not guarantee your event the use of the park.  
 
Special Event Permits for Alcohol Use 
The Event Organizer is responsible for obtaining all permits that the City of Stoughton requires for 
special events containing the use of alcohol requiring a a temporary Class “B” retailer’s license. See 
pages 8-15 for more information. Completed applications should be filed with the City Clerk. 


 
Other City/County/State Requirements 
As the Event Organizer, it is your responsibility to contact the following departments or sections 
concerning specific requirements of your event. Not all of these will be pertinent to your event. 


o Diggers Hotline (800-242-8511) must be contacted, whenever erecting a tent or structure on 
parkland involves any excavation. 


o Dane County Public Health for temporary restaurant guidelines and inspection requirements 
if serving food. (242-6511) 


 


Certificate of Insurance 
Please note that the City of Stoughton requires a “Certificate of Insurance” from you or your parent 
organization’s insurance company. The Event Organizer shall submit a general liability insurance policy 
certificate in the amount of $1,000,000 naming the City of Stoughton as an additional insured party. The City 
of Stoughton Recreation Department must receive this certificate 30 days prior to the event date.  
 


Parking Plan 
As an event organizer, it is important that you plan for safe arrival, departure and parking of the event 
attendees, participants and vendors. The Parks staff does monitor and ticket illegally parked vehicles at the 
events. As the event organizer, you are responsible for informing all participants, volunteers, attendees, and 
vendors of the parking regulations. If your parking plan includes using neighborhood streets or neighboring 
businesses, churches, etc, you will need to include the approval of such agreements in this parking plan. See 
the Parks and Recreation Department for Mandt Park parking plan. 
__________________________________________________________________________________ 
________________________________________________________________________________ 
________________________________________________________________________________ 
________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Security and Medical Plan 
As an event organizer, you are required to provide a safe and secure environment for your event. This is 
accomplished through sound planning. If your event will have over 200 attendees, you must submit a security 
and medical plan for your event. This description should include, but is not limited to the hiring of private 
security companies and licensed professional emergency medical services, crowd control, venue safety, 
communication plan in case of an emergency, etc.  
__________________________________________________________________________ 
__________________________________________________________________________ 
__________________________________________________________________________ 
__________________________________________________________________________ 
 







  
 Page 5 


Site & Route Plan 
To ensure proper review of your event, please attach a site and route plan (if applicable).   
 
Site and route plans should include, but are not limited to, the following information: location of tents, stages, 
fencing, vendors, portable toilets, beer gardens, dumpsters, placement of vehicles, exit location for outdoor 
events that are fenced, clear signage, accessible paths for wheelchairs as well as ample disabled parking and 
any other related event components not listed above. 
 
Your site plan will also include the areas within the requested park you will need for the event: including the 
parking lot, shelter, band shell, grandstand and any other specific park features. 
 
If your event includes a run/walk component you will need to contact the Stoughton Police Department for 
route approval.  
 


Electrical Usage 
Any event needing electrical will meet with the Parks Maintenance Supervisor (873-6746) to go over the 
needs and capabilities of the park. This should be done before signing this agreement. 


 
Portable Restrooms 
Many of City parks have permanent restroom facilities. However, they are not designed for special event use. 
The City of Stoughton requires one portable toilets for every 100 people beyond what the permanent facility is 
designed for. This figure is based upon the maximum number of attendees at your event during peak time. 
For example, Racetrack Park is designed for 400 people at one time. If your event has 500 people at peak 
times, then you will be required to provide one portable restroom. For parks besides Racetrack Park, please 
contact us for the load capacity of the permanent restroom.   
 
We are requiring a minimum of 10 percent (10%) of portable toilets, but never less than one (1) unit must be 
accessible. Further, the ADA Standards require when clusters of portable units are provided at various 
locations around the event site, at least one unit in each cluster must be accessible. Accessible units should 
be located on an accessible route and equipped with all the accessible elements such as maneuvering space, 
grab bars, toilets paper dispensers within reach, etc. In addition, when all units are not accessible, the 
International Symbol of Accessibility must be posted on the units that are.  
 
Peak Event Attendance ____________ - 400 (Racetrack Park Load Capacity) = _________________ / 100 = 
____________ (Number of Required Portable Restrooms) 
 
10% X Number of Required Portable = _______________ (ADA Restrooms Required) 
 
 
______________ ADA Restrooms (Min. of One) 
______________ Total Restrooms Required 


 
 
Calendar of Events  
The Stoughton Chamber of Commerce maintains a calendar of upcoming special events in the City of 
Stoughton at www.stoughtonwi.com. Check for competing activities before choosing your date.  If approved, 
your event will be added to the internet calendar if all of the permits and applications are approved. If this 
section is not filled out, we will assume you do not want to be included on the calendars. 
 
Official Name of Event ______________________________________________________________ 
Park Location ______________________________________________________________________ 
Public contact phone ______________________ Website ____________________________________ 
Admission Cost ___________________________________________________________________ 


Commented [DG5]: This is new 







  
 Page 6 


Date of event ___________________________ Beginning/End time of event __________________ 
Two sentence description of event (for internet calendar) 
________________________________________________________________________________ 
________________________________________________________________________________ 
 


Mandt Community Center Usage 
The Mandt Community Center is a privately owned arena that sits within the borders of Mandt Park. The 
facility is available for rental or restroom usage by contacting the Mandt Community Manager at 873-7528. 
 
 


Equipment Rental 
To assist with your special event, the Stoughton Recreation Department rents some equipment for use by the 
Event Organization. The location of this equipment must be noted on the site and route plan you have 
attached to this application. The Event Organizer must have the ability to pick up and return all equipment.  
 
Rented from Stoughton Junior Fair Board, but picked up by Event Organizer 
 
Trash Barrels = $5 per barrel per day 
Snow Fencing & Stakes = $10 per roll/w 4 fence stakes per day 
Stage = $500 per day 
Public address system = $500 plus deposit for microphone  
 
Rented from Stoughton Parks & Recreation 
 
Electrical pods = $50 fee for each ($1000 deposit) 
Scoreboard controllers (Racetrack Park Diamonds #1 & #2) = $25 fee for each ($1000 deposit) 
Portable scoreboard = $25 fee for each 
 
Rented from Private Vendors 
 
Portable toilets (Possible Vendors: Stoughton Lumber 873-4141, Bucky’s Portable Restrooms 271-1291  
 


Supplies 
The City will provide everything needed for a regular day at the park. Any additional supplies such 
as extra toilet paper, diamond dry, etc are the responsibility of the event organizer. We can provide 
additional supplies at our cost and you will be billed after your event. Please let us know if there are 
any supplies needed prior to your event beginning and the parks staff can arrange for the park to be 
supplied sufficiently.  


 
 
 
 
 


Commented [DG6]: Pat – Do you want to change this 
so they are charged accordingly? The cost of items 
change, so maybe have them contact you for prices?  


Commented [DG7R6]: Has been updated after talking 
to Pat 







  
 Page 7 


Application Signature 
The person/group named in this application will be responsible for the conduct of the group and for 
the condition of the reserved park area. This permit is subject to all Municipal Ordinances as 
defined by the City of Stoughton. The applicant agrees that during the use of the park facility, the 
sponsoring organization will not exclude anyone from participation in, deny anyone the benefits of, 
or otherwise subject anyone to discrimination because of the person’s race, color, creed, national 
origin or handicap. 
 
The applicant for her/himself, and for other persons, organizations, firms and corporation, if any 
listed in this application, does hereby contract to agree that he/she (and they) will jointly and 
severally indemnify and hold the City of Stoughton harmless against liability for any and all claims 
for damages to property, injury to or death of person or persons arising out of or resulting from the 
negligence of the applicant. 
 
Permit holders shall submit a general liability insurance policy certificate in the amount of 
$1,000,000 naming the City of Stoughton as an additional insured party. 
 
The applicant has read the Special Events Explanation packet. The applicant has completed all of 
the appropriate permit applications for this event. 
 
 
________________________________________________    _________________ 
Applicant Signature        Date 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


 
 
 
 
 
 


SPECIAL EVENT LICENSE 
FOR AN INDOOR OR OUTDOOR EVENT 


 







  
 Page 8 


 
General Information 


 


 
Per City Ordinance 14-13, each applicant for a Temporary Class “B” Fermented Malt 
Beverage License and/or a Temporary “Class B” Wine License is required to first obtain a 
Special Event License.  The steps in this process are as follows: 
 


1. Complete: 
a. “Special Event License application” 
b. “Application for Temporary Class “B”/“Class B” Retailer’s License”  
c. “Application for a TEMPORARY Alcohol Beverage Operator’s License” for 


those individuals who will be serving alcoholic beverages and are employed 
by or donating their services to your nonprofit corporation.  (One licensed 
operator must be on the premises whenever alcohol is being sold or served.)     


2. Submit the applications listed above to the City Clerk, at least 30 days prior to the 
date of the event in order for your request to be placed on the next Public Safety 
Committee agenda.  The Public Safety Committee normally meets at 6:00 p.m. on 
the 4th Wednesday of the month in Hall of Fame Room at Stoughton City Hall. 


3. Make arrangements to meet with Police Chief Greg Leck (873-3374) before the 
Public Safety Committee meeting. 


4. Give a presentation of your request to the Public Safety Committee. 
5. The Public Safety Committee will forward a recommendation for approval or 


disapproval to the City Council at their next meeting*.  The City Council meets the 
2nd and 4th Tuesday of the month. 


6. If your applications are submitted completely and correctly 30 days prior to the 4th 
Wednesday of the month, and you receive a recommendation from the Public Safety 
Committee at their first meeting, and approval or disapproval from the City Council at 
their first meeting following the Public Safety Committee, the process takes 
approximately one month between submission of application to issuance of license.   


 
* Please complete your applications and review the attached  
   Standards CAREFULLY AND COMPLETELY.  The submission    


of incomplete applications and/or the inability to satisfactorily address the 
Standards could delay the timeliness and/or approval of your request.   


 
 
 
 
 
 
 


SPECIAL EVENT LICENSE 
FOR AN OUTDOOR EVENT 


 







  
 Page 9 


 
Standards 


 


 
r Sale of fermented malt beverages and/or wine must be physically separate from 


locations where any other items are sold. 
· No food or other sales of any kind to underage individuals allowed from 


alcohol locations. 
 


r Location of fermented malt beverage and/or wine sales shall not be accessible to 
the public except at the selling point. 


· The alcohol area must be separated by impassable walls or a double fence 
with only a single point of entrance and exit.  Double fencing must be a 
minimum of six feet apart to prohibit the passing of alcoholic beverages to 
persons outside of the designated area. 


· The entrance and exit must be monitored at all times during sales or storage 
of fermented malt beverages and/or wine in the designated area. 


· No underage persons are allowed in the designated area. 
 
r The applicant shall keep a book, as required by Wis. Stats. 125.07(7), available at 


the point of entrance to the designated area.   
· Please refer to the attached copy of Wis. Stats.125.07(6) and 25.07(7). 


 
r The City shall provide and the applicant shall post conspicuous notices at the point 


of sale which prohibit the presence of minors and the sale of fermented malt 
beverages and/or wine to minors or intoxicated persons. 


 
· Notices shall be placed at the entrance and on each side of the designated 


area. 
 


r The applicant shall meet with the Chief of Police or designee and City Clerk or 
designee prior to the application being submitted to the Public Safety Committee.  
The Chief of Police or designee shall provide instruction on the proper sale of 
fermented malt beverages and/or wine.  The applicant and the Chief of Police shall 
arrange for routine onsite police protection and patrol. 


· Based on the size of the anticipated event, the Chief of Police will determine 
the adequate amount of police protection and patrol to be designated to the 
area. 


· The costs of police protection and patrol shall be the responsibilities of the 
applicant. 


 
r You must provide proof that all property owners or occupants immediately adjacent 


to the event site have been notified of the type of event and the dates and hours of 
operation, and you must adhere to City Noise Ordinances. 







  
 Page 10 


      
 
      
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


SPECIAL EVENT LICENSE 
FOR AN INDOOR EVENT 


 







  
 Page 11 


 
Standards 


 


 
r The sale of fermented malt beverages and/or wine must be physically separate of all 


other locations where any other items are sold. 
· No food sales of any kind to underage persons from the alcohol sales point.   
 


r Location of fermented malt beverage and/or wine sales shall not be accessible to 
the public except at the selling point. 


· In an indoor setting all fermented malt beverage and/or wine sale points must 
have a single entrance and exit.   


· The entrance and exit must be monitored at all times when fermented malt 
beverages and/or wine are being sold. 


· Storage of fermented malt beverages and/or wine must be locked or 
monitored at all times. 


 
r The applicant shall keep a book, as required by Wis. Stats. 125.07(7), available at 


the point of entrance to designated area. 
· Please refer to the attached copy of Wis. Stats. 125.07(6) & 125.07(7) 


 
r The City shall provide and the applicant shall post conspicuous notices at the point 


of sale prohibiting the presence of minors and the sale of fermented malt beverages 
and/or wine to minors or intoxicated persons. 


 
· The notices shall be placed at the entrance and on each side of the 


designated area. 
 


r The applicant shall meet with the Chief of Police or designee and City Clerk or 
designee prior to the application being submitted to the Public Safety Committee.  
The Chief of Police or designee shall provide instruction on the proper sale of 
fermented malt beverages and/or wine.  The applicant and the Chief of Police shall 
arrange for routine onsite police protection and patrol. 


· Based on the size of the anticipated event, the Chief of Police will determine 
the adequate amount of police protection and patrol to be designated to the 
area. 


· The costs of police protection and patrol shall be the responsibilities of the 
applicant. 


      
 


SPECIAL EVENT LICENSE 
FOR AN INDOOR OR OUTDOOR EVENT 


 







  
 Page 12 


 
Wis. Stats. 125.07(6) and (7) 


 


 
(6) DEFENSES.  In determining whether or not a licensee or permittee has violated 


subs. (1)(a) and (3)(a), all relevant circumstances surrounding the presence of the 
underage person or the procuring, selling, dispensing or giving away of alcohol 
beverages may be considered, including any circumstance under pars. (a) to (d).  
In addition, proof of all of the following facts by a seller of alcohol beverages to an 
underage person is a defense to any prosecution for a violation of this section: 
(a) That the purchaser falsely represented that he or she had attained  
       the legal drinking age. 
(b) That the appearance of the purchaser was such that an ordinary and prudent 


person would believe that the purchaser had attained the legal drinking age. 
(c)  That the sale was made in good faith and in reliance on the  
       representation and appearance of the purchaser in the belief that  
       the purchaser had attained the legal drinking age. 
(d)  That the underage person supported the representation under par. (a) with    


 documentation that he or she had attained the legal drinking age. 
 


(7)  BOOK KEPT BY LICENSEE AND PERMITTES.  (a)  Every retail alcohol beverage 
licensee or permittee may keep a book for the purposes of sub. (6). The licensee or 
permittee or his or her employee may require any of the following persons to sign 
the book; 


1. A person who has shown documentary proof that he or she has  
     attained the legal drinking age, if the person’s age is in question. 


        2.  A person who alleges that he or she is the underage person’s parent,  
             guardian or spouse and that he or she has attained the legal drinking  
             age, if the licensee or permittee or his or her employee suspects that  
             he or she is not the underage person’s parent, guardian or spouse or  
             that he or she has not attained the legal drinking age. 
 


       (b) The book may show that date of the purchase of the alcohol beverages, the  
             identification used in making the purchase or the identification used to establish 
             that a person is an underage person’s parent, guardian or spouse and has attained 
             the legal drinking age, the address of the purchaser and the purchaser’s signature. 


 
 
 
 
 







  
 Page 13 


SPECIAL EVENT LICENSE 
FOR AN INDOOR OR OUTDOOR EVENT 


 


 
City of Stoughton Municipal Code 


 


 
 
Chapter 14 SPECIAL EVENTS 
 
Sec. 14-13 Definitions. 
The following definition shall be applicable to this Chapter: 
(a)   Special Event. Any planned extraordinary occurrence on the public right-of-way or public 
premises including, but not limited to, parades, processions, bicycle or foot races, festivals or 
celebrations; any event occurring on public or private property in which alcoholic beverages are to 
be served which require the issuance of a temporary Class "B" retailer's permit or street use permit. 
 
Sec. 14-14 Application and Permit Procedure. 
 
(a)   Permit Required.  
No person/organization may hold a special event on the public right-of-way or public premises or be 
issued a Temporary Class “B” retailer’s permit without obtaining a special event permit (Addendum 
A). Applications for permits and copies of this ordinance are available from the City Clerk. All 
applications must be submitted at least 30 calendar days prior to the event. Any Special Event in 
which alcoholic beverages are to be sold will require a Special Event Permit. Annual events must 
obtain a permit each year the event is planned. 
 
(b)   Approval Procedure.  
Completed applications shall be filed with the City Clerk. The City Clerk shall forward copies of the 
application to the Police Chief and Director of Public Works. The Police Chief shall review the 
application, determine if on-site Police Personnel will be required, including overtime or additional 
staff labor cost thereof and make recommendations for approval, denial or modification based upon 
expected number of participants, sale of alcoholic beverages, traffic and parking issues and 
consideration of prior events. The Director of Public Works shall review the application to determine 
any additional services or equipment necessary, including any costs thereof and make 
recommendations for approval, denial or modification. The approval of both the Chief of Police and 
the Director of Public Works constitutes approval of the Permit. The Permit fee shall not include 
reimbursement for fixed administrative costs incurred by the City (i.e., salaried employees, regularly 
scheduled hourly staff costs, insurance, etc.) and shall not exceed the amount as listed in the City 
Fee Schedule. 
 
(c)   Appeal of Permit Denials.  
Any applicant who has been denied a special event permit or has had an application modified may, 
upon written request to the City Clerk, have the denial reviewed by the Public Safety Committee. 
The Public Safety Committee may affirm, reverse or modify the initial action on the application. 
Such determination by the Public Safety Committee shall constitute final action. 
 
Sec. 14-15 Permit Requirements and Regulations. 
 







  
 Page 14 


(a)   Route/Location.  
All permit applications for special events shall include a detailed map of the proposed route for 
parades, races or processions and location for festivals or celebrations. Routes/locations for annual 
events must be submitted each year the event is planned. Recommendations for alteration of the 
planned route or location may be made by the Police Chief or Director of Public Works.\ 
 
(b)   Fee/Refunds.  
The applicant for the special event permit shall pay permit fee within five (5) days of the permit 
approval and prior to the event. The permit fee shall be estimated additional costs of the event to 
the City, Public Works and Police Department for additional labor and/or equipment during the 
event. Refunds due to overestimation of additional costs will be made within 25 working days after 
the event; no interest will be paid on refunded amounts, less actual costs incurred. Refunds of 
permit fee may be obtained upon written request if event is canceled. The applicant for the special 
event permit shall not be responsible for additional fees if actual costs for additional labor and/or 
equipment exceed the permit fee. 
 
(c)   Insurance.  
Each applicant of a special event permit shall furnish the City Clerk with a certificate of insurance 
written by a company licensed in the State of Wisconsin, approved by the City Clerk, and covering 
any and all liability or obligations which may result from the operations by the applicant, the 
applicant's employees, agents, or contractors and including worker's compensation coverage in 
accordance with Ch. 102, Wis. Stats. This certificate shall be written in comprehensive form and 
shall protect the applicant and City against all claims arising out of any act or omission of the 
applicant, its employees, agents, or contractors. 
      (1)    The policy of insurance shall provide minimum combined single limits for bodily  
              Injury and property damage of $1,000,000 or such other insurance limits  
              as deemed adequate by the City Clerk or Public Safety Committee. 
      (2)    The certificate of insurance, naming the City of Stoughton as an Additional  
              Insured must be submitted to the City Clerk at least 5 working days prior to the  
              event's occurrence. 
 
(d)   Indemnification. The applicant shall indemnify and save the City harmless from and against all 
liabilities, claims, demands, judgments, losses, and all suits law or in equity, costs, and expenses, 
including reasonable attorney fees, for injury or death of any person or damage to any property 
arising from the holding of such special event. 
 
(e)   Clean Up. It shall be the responsibility of the applicant to clear the route or location of the 
special event of any signs, litter, materials or equipment left as a result of the event within twenty-
four (24) hours of the event's completion. Applicant will be responsible for any damage to any public 
premises other than normal wear and tear. 
 
Sec. 14-16 Penalty. 
 
Any person who shall violate any provisions of this Article shall be subject to a penalty as provided 
in Section 1-3 of this Code. Additionally, failure to comply with any provisions of this Article may 
result in the withholding of approval on any subsequent permit applications for this or other permits 
required by the City. 
 
Sec. 14-17 Severability. 
If any portion of this Section, or its application to any person or circumstances, is held invalid, the 
validity of this Section as a whole, or any other provision herein and its application to other persons 
or circumstances, shall not be affected. 







Stoughton Parks & Recreation Sanctioned Group Application Form  


 


Organization Name: ____________________________________________________________________  


Organization Address: __________________________________________________________________ 


Organization Contact (Field Representative): ________________________________________________ 


Organization Contact Phone Number: ______________________________________________________ 


Organization Board Members:  


___________________________________________ _______________________________________ 


___________________________________________ _______________________________________  


___________________________________________ _______________________________________ 


___________________________________________ _______________________________________ 


 


Are all fees, charges, monies, and expenditures handled by the group?  Yes No  


Does your organization have a bank account in its own name?  Yes  No  


What was the total number of players in your organization during the previous year? _____________ 


What was the number of players in your organization that lived outside of the Stoughton Area School 


District during the previous year? ______________   


Did your organization reduce or waive fees for players in need of a scholarship during the previous year?   


Yes No Number of Scholarships: ___________  


 


Please attach the following documents to your application: 


Organization Bylaws  


Summary of Annual Budget 


Registration Form  


Certificate of Insurance 


 







Stoughton Parks & Recreation Sanctioned Group Application Form  


Provide a summary description of volunteer work or facility improvements to City parks provided by the 


organization: 


_____________________________________________________________________________________


_____________________________________________________________________________________


_____________________________________________________________________________________


_____________________________________________________________________________________ 


 


Office Use Only 


Checklist Item Yes No 


Volunteer Board   


Annual Budget Provided   


Bylaws and organization compatible with department philosophy   


Waivers that indemnifies the City   


Field representative    


Certificates of insurance provided   


90% or more of participants live within the school district boundaries   


Previous invoices paid in a timely manner   


Adherence to athletic field/facility rules and regulations in previous year    


Provided fee waivers in previous year    


Organization assisted parks maintenance in the previous year or provided facility 
improvements to parks 


  


 


Completed by:          Date: ___________________ 





		Athletic Field Policy Memo

		Stoughton Athletic Field Policy Draft 2019

		Introduction

		Definition of Terms



		Athletic Field Use Policy

		Priority Group Qualification: Groups 1 – 8



		Process for Obtaining Permits

		Application

		Permit Procedures

		Pre-Season Scheduling Permit Requests

		Permit Changes, Reschedules, and New Requests

		Fee Payment

		Permit Cancellation

		Field Rest and Renovations

		Athletic Field Lining/Marking

		Field Modifications

		Tournaments/Special Events

		Liability Insurance Requirements

		Errant Shots



		Athletic Field/Facility Allocation Procedures

		Athletic Field Use Rules & Regulations

		Athletic Fields/Facilities Inclement Weather Closure Policy

		Purpose

		Policy

		Procedure



		Appendix A: Athletic Field/Facility Use Rules and Regulations Form

		Appendix B: Hold Harmless and Indemnity Agreement Form

		Appendix C: Application for Use of Athletic Fields/Facilities

		Appendix D: Sanctioned Organization Application

		Appendix E: Athletic Field Fee Schedule

		Appendix F: Alcohol Use

		Appendix G: Special Events in Parks Application



		SPECIAL EVENTS in Parks 2019 draft

		SPECIAL EVENTS IN PARKS

		City of Stoughton Parks and Recreation

		Event Information

		Name of Event________________________________ Park ____________________________

		Charitable Event? No Yes, Proceeds donated to__________________________________

		Event Category Run/Walk Athletic Tournament Concert Festival Other ___________________

		Date of Event ____________________

		Rain Date _______________________

		Expected Attendance ________________

		Concession Stand Needed?  No Yes

		Admission or parking fees are not allowed at Racetrack Park

		Time of Event

		Set-up ___________ Event Starts ___________ Event Ends _________ Take-down _________

		Event Organizer Information

		Name of Group ___________________________Group Contact Name___________________________

		Address __________________________ City/State/Zip _______________________________________

		Phone #1 _________________ Phone #2 ________________

		E-mail _____________________________________

		Is Host Organization a 501(c)-3? No Yes, #ES - ________________________________

		Water Charges        $_______

		Supply Charges        $_______

		Total         $_______

		GENERAL INFORMATION

		Park Hours

		Parking, Security, Medical Needs, and Accessibility

		Event Set-up and Takedown

		Special Event Permits for Alcohol Use

		Other City/County/State Requirements

		Certificate of Insurance

		Parking Plan

		Security and Medical Plan

		Site & Route Plan

		To ensure proper review of your event, please attach a site and route plan (if applicable).

		Electrical Usage

		Any event needing electrical will meet with the Parks Maintenance Supervisor (873-6746) to go over the needs and capabilities of the park. This should be done before signing this agreement.

		Portable Restrooms

		Many of City parks have permanent restroom facilities. However, they are not designed for special event use. The City of Stoughton requires one portable toilets for every 100 people beyond what the permanent facility is designed for. This figure is ba...

		We are requiring a minimum of 10 percent (10%) of portable toilets, but never less than one (1) unit must be accessible. Further, the ADA Standards require when clusters of portable units are provided at various locations around the event site, at lea...

		Peak Event Attendance ____________ - 400 (Racetrack Park Load Capacity) = _________________ / 100 = ____________ (Number of Required Portable Restrooms)

		10% X Number of Required Portable = _______________ (ADA Restrooms Required)

		______________ ADA Restrooms (Min. of One)

		______________ Total Restrooms Required

		Calendar of Events

		Equipment Rental

		Rented from Stoughton Junior Fair Board, but picked up by Event Organizer

		Rented from Private Vendors

		Supplies

		The City will provide everything needed for a regular day at the park. Any additional supplies such as extra toilet paper, diamond dry, etc are the responsibility of the event organizer. We can provide additional supplies at our cost and you will be b...

		Application Signature



		Sanctioned Group Application






Director’s Report  
December 2019 


Whitewater Park  


- Worked with Gary Becker and Matt Dregne on the easement for the RDA property. 
- MSA completed the survey for the easement.  
- Attended the RDA meeting on 12/11 to discuss the easement and DNR grant 
- Communicated with the DNR grant specialist about phasing for the project and funding options. 


If we receive Land Water Conservation Fund (LWCF) monies, we would not have to get approval 
from the Joint Finance Committee because it is federal funding. She said that they have had 
conversations with the LWCF representatives and they like they project.  


- Will be meeting with the Bryant Foundation on 12/13 about the project.  
 


Miscellaneous  


- Attended the Friends of the Stoughton Area Youth Center (FSAYC) meeting. I am responsible for 
developing the City’s budget for the youth center and the FSAYC budget. The FSAYC pays for 
staffing of the youth center outside of $21,000. When the City budget gets passed, it sets the 
FSAYC budget which is mostly fundraising. Working with the Finance Director, we were able to 
get the budget closer to the actual amounts which will help the FSAYC set their fundraising goal 
more accurately.  


- I used vacation the week of Thanksgiving. As of 12/12, I have 126 hours of vacation to be used. 
This is due to workload and staff shortages. I created a plan on November 1 to use vacation, but 
a lot of things happened where I was not able to use planned days off.    


- I hosted the monthly leadership team meeting.  
- Director Hebert and I had a conference call with MSA about incorporating GIS into City parks. 


The proposal for the service was cost prohibitive. MSA communicated that the data entry points 
for the ADA plan would be incorporated, so the data would be there if the City decided to 
incorporate the GIS platform in the future. We decided to not move forward with funding the 
GIS at this time due to costs and not having the ability to utilize the information.  


- I compiled a draft Athletic Field Policy handbook to be used by organizations who want to use 
City fields. I shared this to AJ Gillingham and Pat Groom as there were insurance and field 
maintenance aspects to the policy.  


- Worked with an Eagle Scout on building raised garden beds for the Lowell Park Community 
Garden.  


- Attended a meeting in Madison about Dane County about their Get Outside program. They will 
be hiring a person to work with youth centers, and parks and recreation departments to get 
more youth outside and in parks. They have funding for field trips and are willing to do classes 
on-site as well. Some of the pilot programs include hiking, seed collection, and bird watching.  


Mandt Park Master Plan 


- Communicated with MSA that posting the draft plan to the website for additional feedback was 
preferred over another public meeting.  


Recreation  







Director’s Report  
December 2019 


- Worked with a girl scout troop to clean up the abandoned plots at the community garden. They 
approached me for any service project options. There were 10 plots that still had fencing up, 
weeds, and other issues that needed to be cleaned out.  


- Attended the Friends of Gazebo Musikk meeting on October 21st. They have committed to 
donating a $1,000 towards the park improvements at Rotary Park.  


Bjoin Park 


- Compiled the data gathered in the stakeholder meetings into a summary report.  
- I started researching solar park light costs. This was the consensus number one improvement 


desired by the stakeholders.  


Rotary Park Improvements  


- Revised the grant application that was requested by the Bryant Foundation 
 













1'-111
2"


8'-4"


7'-5"


4'-7"3'-8"


1'-111
2"


4'-3"


8'


2"X6"X8'4"' 2"X6"X4'7"'


2"x4"x3'5"


4"x4"x22.5"
4"x4"x22.5"
(Typical of 6)


2"x4"x3'5"


45° MITER


2"X6"X8'
(Typical of 8)


2"X6"X4'
(Typical of 8)


2"X6"X8'4"


2"X6"X4'7"


SIDE VIEW END VIEW


TOP W/O BENCH TOP WITH  BENCH


PATRICK WOZNIAK
EAGLE SCOUT
PROJECT
TROOP 167
STOUGHTON
12/15/2019







3'-4"
4'3'-5"


PATRICK WOZNIAK
EAGLE SCOUT
PROJECT
TROOP 167
STOUGHTON
12/15/2019







X


STOUGHTON LUMBER CO., INC.
3188 DEER POINT DR


STOUGHTON, WI   53589


PHONE: (608) 873-4141


PAGE NO 1


CITY OF STOUGHTON
CITY HALL


STOUGHTON WI 53589


PATRICK WOZNIAK


GARDEN BEDS


0.00


PRG


12/4/19 9:27


000


PAUL GERBER
WISCONSIN NON TAXABLE


555


433797ESTIMATE:


TOT WT: 0.00


698.00


698.00


0.00


698.00


608-873-6677


PA
002


433797


12/14/19


NET 10TH
3690


TAXABLE
NON-TAXABLE
SUBTOTAL


TAX AMOUNT


TOTAL


Received By


QUOTATION:


CUST NO:


TERMS:


REFERENCE:


JOB NO:


EXPIRATION DATE:


SOLD
TO:


SHIP
TO:


DATE: TIME:


TERMINAL:CLERK:


SALESPERSON:


TAX:


LINE QTY UM SKU DESCRIPTION UNITS LOCATION PRICE/ PER EXTENSION


2 6 PC 2610C2 2X6-10 APPEARANCE GRADE CEDAR 6 MS1 24.00 /PC 144.00 N


3 3 PC 4482C 4X4-8' APPEARANCE GRADE CEDAR 3 MS1 29.00 /PC 87.00 N


4 1 PC 2482C 2 X 4- 8' APPEARANCE GRADE CEDAR 1 MS2 11.00 /PC 11.00 N


5 24 PC 268C2 2X6-8 APPEARANCE GRADE CEDAR 24 MS1 19.00 /PC 456.00 N







Lumber Quantity Demensions Length Price/Board Total
24 2"x6" 8' $19 $456


6 2"x6" 10' $24 $144
3 4"x4" 8' $29 $87
1 2"x4" 8' $11 $11


Fastener Quantity
250 3" #8 Deck screw $30


Top Soil Qt. 
4 Cu. Yards $40 $160


$888





		Planter Boxes-Layout1

		Sheets and Views

		Layout1





		Planter Boxes-Layout2

		Sheets and Views

		Layout2





		Q.433797

		Raised Garden Beds Eagle Project - Budget (1)






 











1


Dan Glynn


From: Dan Glynn
Sent: Monday, October 14, 2019 11:03 AM
To: Pat Groom; Brett Hebert
Subject: FW: Nordic tot lot 7


The email from Dregne outlines the procedure to sell the land back to Dvorak. This is what I was talking about at our 
meeting last week. It was already going to be a hard sell on my committee since we are below the national standard 
for parkland.  
 
Dan Glynn, CPRP 
Parks & Recreation Director  
City of Stoughton  
207 S. Forrest St  
Stoughton, WI 53589 
608‐873‐6746 
www.stoughtonrec.com 
 
 


From: Rodney J. Scheel  
Sent: Thursday, September 19, 2019 6:07 AM 
To: Dan Glynn <DGlynn@ci.stoughton.wi.us> 
Subject: FW: Nordic tot lot 7 


 
FYI 
 
Rodney Scheel 
Director of Planning & Development 
City of Stoughton 
608.873.6619 
 


From: Matthew Dregne [mailto:MDREGNE@staffordlaw.com]  
Sent: Wednesday, September 18, 2019 5:18 PM 
To: 'Bob Dvorak' <Bob@rhdproperties.com> 
Cc: Tim Swadley <TSwadley@ci.stoughton.wi.us>; Rodney J. Scheel <rjscheel@ci.stoughton.wi.us>; Kyle P. Olsen 
<kolsen@staffordlaw.com> 
Subject: RE: Nordic tot lot 7 


 
Bob, 
 
Yes, we have taken a look at this.  Our conclusions at this point are as follows: 
 


1. The land that was dedicated as a park on the plat would need to be vacated by action of a circuit court 
judge.  The City would need to apply to the court and request that the park be vacated.  This procedure is 
described in Section 236.43(3) of the Wisconsin Statutes.  This procedure is available only if the land has 
never been developed as a park or playground.  If the City wants to proceed with an application to vacate 
the park, we would recommend following the notice and hearing requirements set forth in Wis. Stat. 
sections 236.41 and 236.42. 
 


2. We have not been able to nail down exactly how legal title to the vacated park would be determined.  Wis. 
Stat. sec. 66.1005 states as follows:  “When any highway or public ground acquired or held for highway 
purposes is discontinued, the land where the highway or public ground is located shall belong to the owner 







2


or owners of the adjoining lands.  If the highway or public ground is located between the lands of different 
owners, it shall be annexed to the lots to which it originally belonged if that can be ascertained.  If the lots to 
which the land originally belonged cannot be ascertained, the land shall be equally divided between the 
owners of the lands on each side of the highway or public ground.”  However, because we are dealing with a 
park, it is not clear that this statute would apply.  We are continuing to look a bit deeper into this title issue, 
to see if we can find any further guidance.   
 


Matt 
 
STAFFORD 


ROSENBAUM 


LLP 


Matthew P. Dregne   


MDregne@staffordlaw.com |  608.259.2618 |  Fax .  608 .259 .2600  |  
222  West  Wash ing ton  Avenue ,  Su i te  900  
P .O.  Box  1784  |  Madi son ,  Wiscons in  53701 ‐1784  
www.staffordlaw.com |  Profile |  vCard 


  
Stafford Rosenbaum LLP | If you receive this email in error, use or disclosure is prohibited. Please notify me of the error by email and delete this email.  To 
ensure compliance with Treasury Circular 230, we are required to inform you that any tax information or written tax advice contained in this email (including any 
attachments) is not intended to be and cannot be used for the purpose of avoiding penalties that may be imposed under the Internal Revenue Code.  Advice 
from our firm relating to tax matters may not be used in promoting, marketing or recommending any entity, investment plan or arrangement to any 
taxpayer.  Thank you.  
 


From: Bob Dvorak <Bob@rhdproperties.com>  
Sent: Wednesday, September 18, 2019 3:13 PM 
To: Matthew Dregne <MDREGNE@staffordlaw.com> 
Subject: Nordic tot lot 7 


 
Matt, 
 
How you doing? 
 
Have you had time to look at this tot lot in Nordic Ridge to see if it makes sense to put back within the 
plat? At some point pending sales that lot will be within our next phase of development in Nordic Ridge. 
Just would like to get this known one way or another before we go into design. 
 
Take care, 
Bob 
 


  Robert H Dvorak  |  608-712-2048 


 





		Final Plat -

		Nordic Ridge Outlot 7

		Outlot 7 Steps






PARKS AND RECREATION COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES  
 
November 19, 2019  
6:00PM  


 
 


381 E. Main St – Hall of Fame Room 
 
Present: Alderpersons: Phil Caravello, Regina Hirsch, Ben Heili, Tim Riley, Mayor Tim 
Swadley and Parks & Recreation Director Dan Glynn  
 
Call to Order  
Meeting called to order at 6:03 pm.  
 
Approval of the Minutes from October 15, 2019 
 
Motion to approve the minutes as presented by, Riley seconded by Heili 
Motion carried unanimously.  
 
Communication 
 
Director’s Report-Discussion included Dane County Mental Health initiative 
 
Bjoin Park Update Director Glynn reviewed and will compile survey results 
 
Whitewater Park Design (Discussion & Possible Action)  
Motion to support the Full Recreation Plan by, Riley seconded by Heili 
Motion carried unanimously.  
 
Mandt Park Master Plan Update (Discussion)  
Directed staff give preferable option on website. 
 
ADA Transition Plan Proposals (Discussion & Possible Action)  
Motion to accept proposal from MSA not to exceed $26,000 by, Riley seconded by Heili 
Motion carried unanimously.  
 
Recommendation to the Public Safety Committee to Add Nordic Ridge Park to Sec. 50-6 of 
the Stoughton Municipal Code (Discussion & Possible Action)  
Motion to add Nordic Ridge to both parts of policy Paragraph B by, Heili seconded by Riley 
Motion carried unanimously.  
 
 
2020 Park Shelter and Athletic Field Fees (Discussion & Possible Action) 
Director Glynn will bring recommendations to future meeting. 
 
Future Agenda Items 
 
Park reservations 
Park Guidelines 
Bus garage 
Splash Pad/ solar panel results 
Define Sanctioned Groups/establish policy 
Hourly field rates 
Tiered park shelter pricing 
 
 
Motion to adjourn by Heili, seconded by Riley 
Motion carried unanimously at 8:06 pm. 
 








2020 Park Fee Memo  
Dan Glynn, Parks & Recreation Director  


Shelter Fees 


The average fee for park shelters in 2019 was $66.54 for residents and $99.40 for non-residents. The 
City of Stoughton fee for 2019 was $50 for residents and $70 for non-residents. We have raised fees by 
$10 each of the past two years with no impact on the number of shelter reservation permits issued. My 
recommendation would be to approve a $10 increase for 2020 and another $10 increase in 2021 to get 
to market rate. I also recommend eliminating the additional picnic table fee. The shelters are booked 
almost solid and we do not have any extra picnic tables that we can move from shelter to shelter. 


Athletic Field Fees 


The City currently charges Stoughton athletic groups $5/player to use the fields. In exchange, the groups 
have provided some maintenance of the fields and facility improvements. Examples of this would be the 
soccer association lining soccer fields and the baseball organizations providing batting cages at 
Racetrack Park and Norse Park. Other communities charge a small per player fee for similar situations. 
My recommendation is to formally create an Athletic Field Policy which creates a sanctioned 
organization policy as a subsection. The athletic field policy formalizes the agreement between the City 
and organizations. Currently the City hold contracts with the groups to use City facilities. The fee of 
$5/player is market rate. The lower charge for field use allows for the local organizations to pass the 
savings onto Stoughton residents.  


Athletic field fees vary wildly from community to community. We currently charge the following hourly 
rates: 


    Residents  Non-Residents 


Ball Field   $10   $15 


Tennis Court   $10   $15 


Basketball Court  $10   $15 


Ball Field Lights    $15   $20 


 


Proposed: 


    Individual Residents/   Individual Non-Residents/ 


Non-Profit with more  Non-Profit with less than 90% 


than 90% Stoughton Residents  Stoughton Residents  


Athletic Field   $20     $40 


Baseball/Softball Diamond $20     $40 


Tennis Court   $20     $40 


Basketball Court  $20     $40 


Ball Field Lights    $25     $25 







 2019 Athletic Field Fees


Community Ball Diamonds Athletic Fields Tennis/Pickleball Court Ball Diamonds Athletic Fields Tennis/Pickleball Court Other Fees Notes
Fitchburg $5 - practice, $35 - game $5 - practice, $35 - game $5 per court $45 - practice, $100 - game $40 - practice, $100 - game $25 per court Lights - $10/$20 Games include lining and/or dragging
Cottage Grove $20 - practice, $100 - game $15 NA $30 - practice, $125 - game $20 NA Lights - $60/$75 for three hours Games include lining and dragging, No prep for athletic fields, City sponsored groups such as home talent have fee waived
Middleton $40 $15 $2.50 $60 $22.50 $3.75
Madison $60/4 hour block with prep or $15/hour w/ no prep $25 $15/4 hour block or $5/hour Lights - $5/quarter hour No non-resident fee
Waunakee $65 $65 NA $130 $130 NA There is a small discount if the rental is between 8:00 am to 5:00 pm
DeForest $30 - games $75 - practice, $125 - games
Oregon
McFarland
Monona
Verona
Cross Plains
Sun Prairie $15/hour $20/hour $30/hour $40/hour Outdated per director
Mount Horeb
Stoughton $10/hour $10/hour $10/hour $15/hour $15/hour $15/hour Lights - $15/$20 City sponsored groups like Little League are charged $5/player


Resident Non-Resident







Community Resident Non Resident # of Shelters 10 Years or Newer Security Deposit Concession Area Alcohol Permit Restrooms Population


Cottage Grove $50.00 $75.00 4 0 $100.00 $50.00 $20.00 4 6,939


Waunakee $85.00 $125.00 12 5 N/A $50.00 N/A 10 13,755


Cambridge $105.50 N/A 3 1 N/A $27.00 Only if alcohol is sold 1 1,518


Fitchburg $95.00 $130.00 7 4 N/A $100.00 Only if alcohol is sold 7 29,485


Monroe $75.00 N/A 9 1 N/A $75.00 Included With Permit 6 10,827


Mt. Horeb $50.00 $70.00 6 1 N/A $10.00 Only if alcohol is sold 6 7,421


DeForest $75.00 $150.00 9 1 $75.00 Included Beer is legal in parks 7 10,340


Watertown $50.00 $75.00 15 2 N/A $20.00 Only if alcohol is sold 14 23,655


Janesville $100.00 $123.00 12 1 N/A Included $50.00 12 64,359


Monona 8,104


Stoughton $50.00 $70.00 7 1 N/A No Charge $5.00 5 13,088


Fort $35.00 N/A 5 0 $35.00 $125.00 Only if alcohol is sold 5 12,482


Verona $50.00 $100.00 10,619Middleton 19,660


Jefferson $55.00 N/A 6 1 $100.00 N/A Only if alcohol is sold 6 7,997


Maple Bluff


Per hr 


rental


No rentals to 


NR 3 2 $100.00 N/A N/A 2 1,331


Marshall $56.00 $76.00 6 6 $50.00 N/A $25.00 6 3,973Cross Plains


Averages $66.54 $99.40 7.428571429 1.857142857 $76.67 $57.13 $25.00 6.5 15,420


Did not respond


$75 w Restrooms and electrical. 


Comments


Shelter Reservation Fees 2019


Did not provide information


Fees are Averaged


Fees are average. Charged based on number 


attending. 2 new, 2 remodled. Charge $100 


for 2 shelters with indoor area


Kitchen Area Included for $150


*Fees are an average based on 6 shelters


Have cheaper weekday rates. Restrooms 


within walking distance of shelters
Fees are average Range from $30-$155R; 


$45 - $170NR


$40/hr. peak $20/hr. off peak


$35 for 3 open air shelters. $125 Ave for 2 


other pavillions. 1 shelter remodeled in 


2017. Security Deposit is average. Average 


for kitchen rental


$50 & $100 based on 50 people
$40 weekdays; 2 shelters have attached RR's 


4 have stand alone RR's







CITY OF STOUGHTON 
PARK RESERVATION POLICY/PROCEDURE MANUAL 


Adopted by Council: February 13, 2018 
 


RESERVATIONS 
Anyone desiring use of a specific park area for their particular group or anyone who wants to bring beer and/or wine 
coolers under 6% alcohol by volume (no hard liquor allowed) into a public park must apply for and obtain a Park 
Reservation Permit. Applications are accepted starting on the first work day of the year following New Year’s Day.  
Park facilities are reserved on a first-requested, first-reserved basis. A request must become a reserve within 7 days. A 
reserve consists of a signed contract and paid fees. The adult signing the reservation form is the duly authorized 
representative for any and all damages, missing items and clean up. The user is required to clean up the shelter or 
picnic area after use. 
 
Parks available for reservation are Norse Park, East Park, Bjoin Park, Virgin Lake Park, Stoughton Rotary Park, 
Westview Ridge Park and Nordic Ridge Park.   
 
FEES AND RESIDENCY 
Fees are based on residency.  A resident is defined as any person residing or organization located within the corporate 
limits of the City of Stoughton as well as property owners within. Individuals and/or organizations within the 
Stoughton School District, but not within the corporate city limits, are considered non-residents and pay non-resident 
rates. 
 
Exemption(s) from park rental fees are provided for the Syttende Mai Festival, Coffee Break Festival, Stoughton 
Schools, Stoughton Rotary Club at the Rotary Gazebo, and the Stoughton Junior Fair.  No other exemptions will be 
allowed. 
 
PARK HOURS 
Except for authorized events, all City parks shall be closed from 10:00 p.m. to 5:00 a.m.  
 
MOTORIZED VEHICLES 
Motor vehicles are restricted to the roads, drives and parking areas. Vehicles are allowed to drop off people and picnic 
supplies at park shelters, when conditions are appropriate; however, all vehicles must be parked on the street or in 
designated parking areas.  No person shall operate any off-the-road vehicle, motorcycle, snowmobile, trail bike, all-
terrain vehicle, truck or other motorized vehicle in any park, playground, or public area. 
 
ALCOHOL USE 
Glass beverage bottles are prohibited in parks. This park permit will allow consumption of beer and/or wine coolers 
under 6% alcohol by volume (no hard liquor allowed). Usage of beer/wine coolers shall be kept to within 30 feet of a 
reserved shelter (within reserved shelter time), within the marked usage areas at Racetrack Park and Mandt Park 
(Attachment “C”), and inside the sidewalk where applicable.  
 
If beer, or wine coolers under 6% alcohol by volume are to be sold (Mandt Park, Norse Park, and Racetrack Park 
only), a Temporary Class “B” Picnic license must be obtained from the City Clerk’s Office, per guidelines set forth in 
Chapter 125 of the Wis. Statutes, and city code 14.461 (1)O, as well as fees paid for the license and to the Recreation 
Dept.  Temporary Class “B” licenses can take from 45-60 days to be processed. These licenses will only be granted to 
bona fide clubs, lodges, societies and churches which have been in existence for at least six months, or be veteran’s 
organizations or fair associations.  
 
FIRES 
No person shall start, tend or maintain a fire except in personal grills or designated fireplaces. Personal grills shall be 
used only in designated picnic areas. The use of personal grills is permitted provided lawns and vegetation are not 
endangered. 
 
PHONE NUMBERS:  For emergency – Police, Fire and Ambulance call 911  
     Non-emergency – Police call (608) 873-3373 
   Reservation questions -- Parks and Recreation 873-6746 
 
 







 
PROCEDURES 
1. Applicant for a park permit requests a particular date and park area. The schedule is checked to verify availability.  
If available, an application form (attachment “A”, back page) is filled out in its entirety, particularly noting the person 
in charge and his/her telephone number and address, and where the deposit should be returned. 
 
2. The applicant is advised of the appropriate fee as shown on Attachment "B". The fee must be paid at the time of 
application.   
 
3. The use of loudspeakers or amplifying devices in the parks of the City of Stoughton is prohibited unless the party 
desiring to use such loudspeaker or amplifying device first obtains a permit from the Recreation Department. 
 
4.  Upon payment of fee, a copy of the permit is made. The copy of the permit is given to the applicant, along with a 
map (Attachment "C") showing the park area reserved.  The applicant is advised to have the permit with them at the 
park on the day of picnic. 
 
One copy of the reservation is given to the Police Department; one is kept in the Parks and Recreation Department 
file, and one to the Parks Maintenance Supervisor. 
  
5.  A refund can be made to applicants requesting such a refund, when the event was cancelled due to rain-out, or if 
the park reservation is cancelled by the applicant giving such notice to the Parks & Recreation Department at least 2 
days prior to the date reserved.  The fee paid for a Temporary Class "B" license is not refundable. All refunds are 
subject to an administrative processing fee of five dollars. 
 
6. A key should be picked up one or two business days before the reservation. If a key is lost, the renter is responsible 
for the cost of replacement and rekeying the shelter. Shelters where a key is needed: Virgin Lake Park, Norse Park, 
Nordic Ridge Park, and Bjoin Park. 
 
7. At the conclusion of the reservation, the grounds near the shelter are clean, the tables are wiped off, rest rooms are 
as they were found, doors locked, and lights out. Trash bags can be pulled, tied, and left next to the trash receptacles. 
The parks maintenance staff will check the shelter for these items on the following day.  If the City incurs additional 
costs to cleanup or repair of damages, the applicant shall be responsible for reimbursement to the City for those costs. 







Attachment B 
CITY OF STOUGHTON 


POLICY/PROCEDURE MANUAL 
 
 SUBJECT:        FEE POLICY  
 ______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 PARK SHELTER                            CITY RESIDENT     NON-RESIDENT* 
 
 Park Shelter                      $50                        $70 
 
 Beer/Wine Cooler Endorsement  $5   $5 
   
 
 
 BALLFIELDS (per hour) 
 
 Ball Field         $10                        $15 
 
 Ball Field-lights        $15                        $20 
 
 
 OTHER (per hour) 
 
 Racetrack Building    $10   $15 
 
 Mandt Grandstand    $50   $75 
 
 Tennis Court            $10                        $15            
 
 Basketball Court              $10                        $15 
 
 Equipment-Picnic Table         $10                        $10 
 
 
 Includes Sales Tax  
 *Non-resident includes anyone not living or owning property in the City of Stoughton 
 Non profit organizations will be charged a flat fee per the Park Rental agreement. 


Commented [DG1]: To be removed and included 
into Athletic Field Policy 


Commented [DG2]: To be removed and included 
into Athletic Field Policy (Appendix E) 







Attachment C 
 


 Approved alcohol use and sales in Mandt Park are allowed in the following areas and times: 
 


1. Within 30 feet of the large shelter during reservations. 
2. Within the defined area at the band shell 
3. Within 30 feet of, as well as within the grandstand, and the area between the grandstand and the 


Mandt Community Center. 
4. No later than 10 PM. 
5. Unless additional approvals are granted by the City Council. 


 
 
  Approved alcohol use and sales in Racetrack Park are allowed in following areas and times: 
 


1. Within 50 feet of fencing currently used for eligible game. 
2. Within 20 feet of Racetrack Building. 
3. After 15 minutes of completion of Little League.   
4. Within 15 minutes of, or 15 minutes after game start and finish times. 
5. No later than 10 PM 
6. Unless additional approvals are granted by the City Council. 


 
 


 Approved alcohol use and sales in Norse Park are allowed in the following area and times:  
 
 1.   Within 50 feet of the baseball diamond fencing. 


2.   Only during Merchant Home Talent baseball games on Thursdays and Sundays from April through   
      October. 


            3.   Unless additional approvals are granted by the City Council. 
 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


Commented [DG3]: To be removed and included in 
Athletic Field Policy 







STOUGHTON PARKS AND RECREATION DEPARTMENT 
PARKS AND FACILITY RESERVATION AGREEMENT 


207 S. Forrest Street 
Stoughton WI  53589 
Phone (608) 873-6746  


dglynn@ci.stoughton.wi.us       
 
Applicant:________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Address: _________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
City:  _______________________________________ State:  ______________ Zip Code: _______________________ 
 
Phone: Home: ___________________ Work: ________________ Cell: ________________Email:________________ 
 
Organization: _____________________________________________________________________________________  
 
Address: _________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
City:  ______________________________________________ State: ______________ Zip Code: 
_________________ 
 
Type of Event: ____________________________________ # of participants anticipated: _______________________ 
 
PARK _____________________  DATE (S) __________________ TIME (0:00-0:00) _______________________ 
 
___________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 Beer Use?  No_____ Yes_____ If yes, refer to “Attachment B”. 
 Amplification? No_____         Yes_____ Allowed at Mandt Park and the Pool                          
 Tents?  No_____ Yes_____ If yes, Size _____________ Number ____________ 
       Special Event?     No_____         Yes_____ Excess of 250 people, contact Parks and Recreation            


                                                                             Director for additional information.  
        
The undersigned accepts full responsibility for the conduct of the above group while on park property and agrees to indemnify 
and save harmless the City of Stoughton from any and all liability which might be occasioned to said City by virtue of granting 
permission in this agreement.  I further agree to exercise due care in the preservation of the premises. I further agree that I will 
ensure compliance with all rules, regulations or ordinances applicable to the use of City of Stoughton parks and facilities. 
 
Signature_______________________________________________________Date ______________________ 
   (Applicant must be 21 years of age or older) 
 
IMPORTANT: A KEY SHOULD BE PICKED UP AT THE RECREATION DEPARTMENT A FEW 
BUSINESS DAYS PRECEEDING THE RESERVATION TO GAIN ACCESS TO BJOIN, NORDIC RIDGE, 
NORSE AND VIRGIN LAKE PARKS. 
 
 


FOR OFFICE USE ONLY 
 
Fee:   ___________                                       
 
Insurance Required: No_________       Yes ___________  Amount: $__________________________ 
 
Department Approval_____________________________________________ Date_____________________ 


 


Attachment “A” 





		Park Fee Item

		Park Fee Memo

		Fee Schedules

		Sheet1





		2019 Shelter Fee Comparison

		PARK RESERVATION POLICY 2019






 


 


OFFICIAL NOTICE AND AGENDA - AMENDED 
Notice is hereby given that the Parks and Recreation Committee of the City of Stoughton, 
Wisconsin will hold a regular or special meeting as indicated on the date, time and location 
given below. 


 


Meeting of the: 
Date /Time: 
Location: 
Members: 
 
CC: 


PARKS AND RECREATION COMMITTEE OF THE CITY OF STOUGHTON 
Tuesday, December 17, 2019 at 6:00 pm 
381 E.  Main St – Hall of Fame Room  
Regina Hirsch, Tim Riley, Phil Caravello, Ben Heili, Tim Swadley 
 
Attorney Matt Dregne, Department Heads, Stoughton Newspapers,  
Judi Krebs, Pat Groom, Sarah Monette, Jon Lewis, Bob Diebel, Desi Weum, 
Council Members 


 
Item #   CALL TO ORDER 
1   Call to Order    
 
2 Approval of Minutes from November 19, 2019 
 
3 Communication  


Director’s Report   
Item #   OLD BUSINESS  
4 Mandt Park Master Plan Update (Discussion) 
 
5   2020 Park Shelter and Athletic Field Fees (Discussion & Possible Action) 
 
6   Nordic Ridge Outlot 7 (Discussion & Possible Action)  
 
Item #   NEW BUSINESS      
7 Athletic Field Policy (Discussion & Possible Action) 
 
8 Lowell Park Raised Garden Beds Eagle Scout Project (Discussion & 


Possible Action) 
    
9   Future Agenda Items 
 
Item #   ADJOURNMENT  





